
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Human Resources Committee 

on Tuesday, 26 March 2019, at 3.00 p.m. 

in the Bindloss Room - Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Roger Bingham 

Andrew Butcher 

Philip Dixon (Vice-Chairman) 

Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 

Dave Khan 

Matt Severn 

Peter Thornton 

Graham Vincent 

Mark Wilson 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Friday, 15 March 2019 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Una Bell 

 

Telephone: 01539 793248 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  3 - 6 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 12 February 2019. 

 

3  MINUTES OF HUMAN RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE  7 - 8 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Sub-Committee 
held on 22 and 24 January 2019 and for the Chairman of the appropriate Sub-
Committee to sign, as a correct record. 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

5  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

6  WORKING ARRANGEMENTS AND FLEXI POLICY  9 - 26 

 To consider the Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

7  HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

 

27 - 34 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 15 January 2019. 

 



15 
12.02.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Human Resources Committee held in the 
Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 12 February 2019, at 3.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 
Philip Dixon (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Roger Bingham 

Dave Khan 
 

Graham Vincent 
Mark Wilson 

 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Andrew Butcher and Peter 
Thornton. 
 
 

Officers 
 

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Natalie Longfellow Human Resources Advisor 

Charles Officer Senior Human Resources Advisor 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

 

HR/36 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 11 December 2018. 
 

HR/37 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

HR/38 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the items in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

HR/39 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/20  
 
The Senior Human Resources Advisor presented a report which outlined the Pay Policy 
Statement 2019/20. He explained that the Pay Policy Statement provided visibility and 
transparency with regard to the Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees in 
particular that of senior management.  
 
The Senior Human Resources Advisor responded to questions raised by Members and 
clarified the difference between the Foundation Living Wage and the National Minimum 
Wage.  
 

Page 3

Item No.2



16 
12.02.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That the Pay Policy Statement 2019/20 be recommended to Full Council 
for approval. 
 

HR/40 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 
 

HR/41 JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL 
 
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders 
under the authority.  

 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meetings of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 
8 October and 17 December 2018 be received.  
 

HR/42 ORGANISATIONAL ESTABLISHMENT UPDATE 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information)  
- Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations 

or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the 
authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under the 
authority.  

 
The Senior Human Resources Advisor presented a report outlining the updated 
Organisational Establishment list which provided details of the interim Customer Connect 
Arrangements. The report provided the establishment prior to the move into 
implementation of the new operating model and detailed a number of minor changes 
which had been made since the presentation of the last Organisational Establishment 
report in July 2018.  The Senior Human Resources Advisor explained that the new 
operating model, with a revised structure, would be implemented by the Council from 
1 April 2019. 
 
The Senior Human Resources Advisor and Chief Executive responded to questions raised 
by Members. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the changes as detailed in the report and appendices be noted; and 
 
(2) the updated Establishment List at Appendix A to the report be received. 
 

HR/43 CUSTOMER CONNECT UPDATE 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

Page 4



17 
12.02.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)  

- Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations 
or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the 
authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under the 
authority.  

 
The Senior Human Resources Advisor presented a report which provided an update on 
the implementation of the people workstreams of the Customer Connect programme. The 
report provided a summary of activity regarding expressions of interest in Voluntary 
Redundancy; recruitment to the Senior Management structure and Phase 1; the outline 
timetable for Phase 2; and initial planning for the transition into the New Operating Model.  
 
The Senior Human Resources Advisor and the Chief Executive responded to questions 
raised by Members. 
 
At this point in the meeting the Chairman took the opportunity to thank the Senior Human 
Resources Advisor for his presentation of the reports and comprehensive responses 
throughout the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1)  the progress on the implementation of the people workstreams of the Customer 
Connect Programme be noted; and 
 
(2) the updated changes made to contracts of employment, in line with legislative 
requirements and in order to meet the needs of the customer, service and employee 
health and wellbeing, be endorsed. 
 

HR/44 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.52 p.m. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



1 
22.01.2019 Human Resources Sub-Committee 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Human Resources Sub-Committee held in 
the Human Resources Training Room, South Lakeland House, Kendal, commencing on 
Tuesday, 22 January 2019, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors  
  

Andrew Butcher 
Philip Dixon 

 

Rachael Hogg 
Dave Khan 

 

  
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Roger Bingham. 
 

Officers 
 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Kerry Wallace Human Resources Manager 

 

HRS/1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Philip Dixon be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

HRS/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

HRS/3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

HRS/4 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraph indicated. 
 

HRS/5 INTERVIEW PROCESS 
 
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.  
 
The interview process required all candidates to prepare a presentation and present to the 
Panel, followed by a competency-based interview. 
 
Consideration was given to the appointment of Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources and to the appointment of Director of Customer and Commercial Services, with 
the meeting adjourning on 22 January and reconvening on 24 January to conclude the 
interviews. 
 

Page 7

Item No.3



2 
22.01.2019 Human Resources Sub-Committee 
 
It was subsequently unanimously 
 
RESOLVED – That the posts of Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources and 
Director of Customer and Commercial Services be offered to the preferred candidates 
selected at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
The process ended at 5.45 p.m. on Thursday, 24 January 2019. 

Page 8



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Human Resources Committee - 26 March 2019 

Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy 

 

Portfolio:   Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  David Sykes – Director People and Places 

Report Author: Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe – HR Manager 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The Committee approves the new working arrangements and flexi policy. 

2.0 Recommendation 

 It is recommended to the Human Resources Committee that they: 

(1) approve the new Working Arrangements and Flexi policy as attached at 
Appendix 1 for implementation with effect from 1 April 2019. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 At the July 2018 meeting, the Committee received a report on the HR restructure 
principles relative to the Customer Connect Programme.  These principles are being 
delivered in line with the detailed design process, change, engagement and transition 
management activities. 

3.2 These activities are transforming the Council from the old to the new ways of working 
that the model commands.  To support the new model requires the Council to perform 
differently in a multitude of ways.  With Phase 1 nearing completion and transformation 
of this phase imminent policies and procedures are being reviewed and developed and 
this Policy will be one of the many key enablers that will support this transformation. 

3.3 This Policy enables the ability to work more flexibly and in line with our customers’ 
requirements.  In order to achieve this we are increasing the flexibility around our 
working arrangements in the vast majority of the Council.  This means that existing 
core working hours will be removed. 

3.4  Access to services between the hours of 8.45am and 5.00pm will remain, however, 
not all employees will work within the rigidity of these times. 

 Employees may start earlier or later than 8.45am and finish earlier or later than 
5.00pm.  However services must be covered by employees during our opening hours. 

3.5 Flexibility in the workplace will allow the Council and its’ employees to make 
arrangements about working hours that suit the Council, our customers and our 
employees.  This will support the service provision but also promote and maintain a 
healthy work/life balance for our employees.   

Page 9

Item No.6



3.6 This type of flexibility has countless benefits which in turn leads to the improvement of 
productivity and efficiencies, e.g. reducing the cost of sickness absence.  It can lead 
to increased employee morale, engagement and commitment.  It can also lead to the 
enhancement employment reputation and can ultimately lead to the Council becoming 
an employer of choice in the area.  It can therefore lead to retention and reduced 
turnover. 

3.7 In 2017, a study of UK businesses and employees conducted by HSBC found that 9 
in 10 employees (89%) considered flexible working arrangements to be the biggest 
motivator to their productivity levels within the workplace.  This was a view shared 
equally among male and female employees (87% and 90% respectively).  More so 
than financial incentives (77%). 

3.8 Alongside this, 81% of workers said they believe that the opportunity to work remotely 
would also help them to improve productivity, making a clear link between flexible 
working cultures and increased productivity levels.  This will be updated in line with our 
proposed homeworking policy. 

3.9 The study also suggests that companies providing a better work/life balance may well 
be paving the way for a more productive workforce as employees feel more motivated. 

3.10  Flexible working arrangements supports the agile model and provides a clear 
leadership vision around the creation of an environment that is built on trust.   

3.11 Implementing such flexible working arrangements may introduce a risk as such 
arrangements could be open to potential abuse.  In the event of a breach of trust and 
confidence this may lead to imposing prescribed working hours for employees and/or 
the service area.  However the aim is to manage any breach of trust and confidence 
on a case by case basis. 

3.12 This policy does not replace an employees’ statutory right to apply for flexible working. 

3.13 The policy also includes the existing arrangements surrounding the accrual of flexi.  
The rules on accruing and taking flexi are the same as the original policy.  This is 
explained below. 

3.14 Employees who work under agreed flexible working arrangements policy will be able 
to accrue flexi.   

Employees will be able to accrue up to a maximum of 13 working days flexi leave per 
annum.  Employees will be allowed to take half a day or a full day in lieu.  Only one full 
day’s flexi leave or two half days flexi leave can be taken per settlement period – every 
4 weeks (pro rata to part time staff).  All flexi leave is to be agreed in advance with the 
Lead, Director or Chief Executive and is to be approved through the system. 

In addition to the 13 days flexi employee’s will also be able to accumulate up to 5 full 
additional working days flexi to be taken during the year, by banking them on the 
system.  In these circumstances the hours must have been accrued in advance.    
 

3.15 Members are asked to consider and approve the adoption of the new Policy for 
implementation with effect from 1 April 2019 when the new structure is implemented. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The formalised introduction of flexible working arrangements is a distinct advantage 
for eligible employees.  Those employees who are positively affected by the changes 
are primarily represented by Unison.  Discussions have taken place with the Unison 
representative who is fully supportive of changes and understands the all-round 
benefits. The proposed policy was presented to JCP at its meeting on 12 March 2019 
and was recommended to HR Committee for approval. 

Page 10



5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative option is to retain the existing working arrangements and flexi system. 
It is considered that retaining the status quo position would not release all the benefits 
of working in the new model, with the consequence that this will have a less positive 
effect resulting in higher absence, low morale, employees being less effective and 
potentially providing poor customer service. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Council Plan 2014-19 states that ‘’through a flexible and skilled workforce’’ and 
‘through our customer connect programme,’’ staff will have the ability to work more 
efficiently for the customer and our workforce plan development will set out future 
requirements for the organisation. We will continue to develop our skilled workforce 
with more digital skills and a more flexible, coordinated approach to working across 
services….’’ 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial, resources or procurement activity related to this policy. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no relevant human resources implications relative to the introduction of this 
policy.  During the transition period training will be provided for employees along with 
associated communications detailing the policy changes. 

7.3 Whilst this type of flexibility has significant benefits there are clear expectations 
surrounding the levels of productivity.  Flexibility drives increased productivity, 
however, where it is abundantly clear that productivity levels are reduced a review will 
be undertaken and, depending on the outcome, addressed accordingly. 

Legal 

7.3 None arising through this briefing.   

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 The introduction of the policy aims to support a healthy work/life balance.  The ability 
to work flexibly will support employees with the increasing environmental and social 
pressures faced in society today.   

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Directors and Leads will have responsibility for ensuring that a consistent approach is 
adopted which demonstrates that all employees are treated equally.  

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The system is open to potential 
abuse 

Employees who are not 
compliant with the ethos of 
trust and confidence 

Communication and 
understanding of the new 
Policy 

Introduction of prescribed 
working hours as required 
and/or potential 
disciplinary action 

Contact Officers 

Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe – Human Resources Manager     

Page 11



k.johnson-metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy 

2 2014 Flexi Scheme Policy 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

N/A N/A 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services - 

Section 151 Officer - 

Monitoring Officer - 

SMT - 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 12

mailto:k.johnson-metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

pg. 1 
 

 

WORKING ARRANGEMENTS and FLEXI TIME POLICY  
 

 
1.0 SCOPE 
 
This policy applies to all employees employed by South Lakeland District Council (SLDC). 
 
2.0  INTRODUCTION 
 
We recognise the importance of helping our employees to balance their work and personal 
life/commitments by offering, where possible, non-prescribed working hours and flexible working 
arrangements. We understand that staffing levels must support the requirements of our customer 
and services. 
 
The policy provides guidance on how non-prescribed working hours and flexible working 
arrangements enable service requirements to be met and details the process of accruing flexi time. 
The benefits of working within this policy include increased morale and motivation, reduction in 
absence and maintaining mutual trust and good relationships. 
 
This policy follows best practice and aligns with our values. It is not intended to replace employees’ 
statutory right to apply for flexible working (for example specific working days, compressed working 
hours or reduction in hours). 
 
It is recognised that the full range of working options presented in this policy will not be appropriate 
for all roles across all of our service areas. Some service areas require prescribed working hours in 
order to meet customer and service needs. 
 
3.0     RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Leadership Team:   
 
The Chief Executive, Directors, and Lead Specialist or Operational Leads (Leads) are committed to 
ensuring that all employees adhere to the policy and are responsible for: 
 

 Ensuring effective and consistent application of this policy and supporting employees in its 
use  

 Ensuring that services are staffed with an appropriate number of employees in line with 
customer and service needs 

 
All Employees:   
 
All employees are responsible for ensuring they follow this policy.   
 
4.0   WORKING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Trust and confidence underpins this policy along with a clear focus on the requirements of our 
customers and services.   
 

Appendix 1 

Page 13



 

pg. 2 
 

Leads will work together with their teams to determine working arrangements that enables delivery 
of services. This provides the service and employees with the ability to manage the distribution of 
hours worked across their service area and meet, where possible, employee commitments. 
 
Employees will be required to work their contractual hours each week with flexible start and finish 
times. However, there will be a need for prescribed times for some service areas. 
 
With exception to those service areas with prescribed times, start and finish times are to be agreed 
with Leads and will be in line with customer and service requirements but with flexibility, and where 
possible, to accommodate employee commitments.  Employees who have access to IT will be 
required to ensure that their start and finish times are recorded in the system.   
 
Expectations of Corporate Management Team (CMT) 
 
CMT are expected to balance service delivery requirements for each service area with the desires 
of Leads to work flexibly. 
 
Expectations of Leads 
 
Leads are expected to balance service delivery requirements with the desires of employees to 
work flexibly. 
 
It is essential that adequate cover is maintained during specific times where there is a need for 
minimum staffing levels and/ or where service areas provide a front line service to members of the 
public, therefore, Leads may specify reasonable restrictions on working hours as appropriate in 
these service areas. 
 
In some circumstances due to changes in operational demands, there may be occasions where 
agreed working arrangements may not be appropriate. Where this happens an agreed approach 
will be discussed and new working arrangements introduced for a specific time period.   
 
Leads will be responsible for ensuring that contractual working hours are worked each week. 
 
Expectations of Employees 
 
Once working arrangements are agreed for the service area and/or per employee within that 
service area, employees have an obligation to adhere with these arrangements.  Employees 
wishing to work outside or change these arrangements need to discuss this with their Lead.  We 
are respectful that business need and employees circumstances do change. 
 
Contractual hours must be met each week and employees must record their daily working hours on 
the system (start and finish times only). Employees are also to be mindful of the requirements of 
the current Working Time Directive. 
 
5.0  MISUSE OF WORKING ARRANGEMENTS AND FLEXI TIME POLICY 
 
In the event of a breach of trust and confidence Leads may impose prescribed working hours for 
employees and/or service areas or take some other form of action. 
 
In the event of misuse of this policy, appropriate action may be taken in line with the Disciplinary 
Policy. This will be managed on a case by case basis.  
 
Where an employee does not work their contractual hours each week (taking account of any flexi 
taken) it is the responsibility of the Lead or Director (in the cases of Leads), to discuss and agree 
the way forward.   
 
 

Page 14



 

pg. 3 
 

6.0      SECURITY 
 
Employees who work outside times when premises are not open to customers will be expected to 
be especially careful about the security of the premises.  Any strangers should be challenged for 
their right to be in the building, and unusual occurrences should be reported to the employee’s 
Lead as soon as possible.  
 
7.0      SMOKE BREAKS 
 
Employees leaving the building for smoking or other breaks must clock in and out during this time.  
Any misuse of smoke breaks will be managed appropriately.  
 
8.0 BREAKS 
 
Breaks are important for our wellbeing; it is the employee’s responsibility to ensure they take a 
minimum 30 minute unpaid break each day. Employees must clock in and out during this time.  
 
9.0 ABSENCE FOR PERSONAL APPOINTMENTS. 
 
Employees may work flexibly to attend personal appointments which must be agreed in advance 
with the Lead responsible for that Service Area and by working collaboratively with your colleagues 
to ensure service requirements are met.  If the Lead is unavailable or out of the business approval 
must be sought from the appropriate Director.  Employees are reminded that their full contractual 
hours need to be worked each week therefore any time taken for appointments is to be made up or   
alternatively employees may wish to utilise their flexi. 
 
10.0 TRAINING AND EXTERNAL MEETINGS 
 
On days involving travel to and from training and external meetings, employees record their start 
and finish times as per normal. Working hours include travel to the venue and returning to home or 
work. 
 
If your meeting involves an overnight stay, you must only record your working time hours. Time will 
not be accrued for time away from home. 
 
11.0 COLLEGE/ STUDY 
 

11.1 Full Day Study 
Time involved in off-the-job study relevant to your role including examinations or 
study time, can be recorded up to a maximum of 7.24 hours per day including travel 
to the venue and returning to home or work.  
 

11.2 Half Day Study 
A morning or afternoon taken as off-the-job study relevant to your role including 
examinations or study time, can record up to a maximum of 3.42 hours including 
travel to the venue and returning to home or work.   

 
13.0 WORKING FROM HOME 
 
Employees working from home/those who hot desk and/or work at partner establishments will be 
required to follow the Home Working Policy. Working hours are to be agreed with the Lead or 
Director of that Service Area and worked in line with the Working Time Regulations. Start and 
finish times are to be recorded on the system as if you were working in one of SLDC’s premises.  
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

pg. 4 
 

14.0 FORGOTTEN BOOKINGS 
 
Employees who forget to record their start and finish times must discuss this with their Lead and 
input to the system following discussion and agreement of the number of hours worked. 
 
15.0 FLEXI LEAVE 
 
Employees who work under agreed flexible working arrangements will be able to accrue flexi.   
 
Employees will be able to accrue up to a maximum of 13 working days flexi leave per annum.  Only 
one full day’s flexi leave or two half days flexi leave can be taken per 4 week period. All flexi is to 
be approved through the system. 
 
In addition to the 13 days flexi leave employees will also be able to accumulate up to 5 full 
additional working days flexi leave to be taken during the year by banking them on the system.  In 
these circumstances the hours must have been accrued in advance.    
 
If a period of annual leave includes a flexi-day this must be identified in the system for approval. 
 
These arrangements do not affect any employees who are entitled to overtime payments in 
accordance with National Joint Council, National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of Service 
should record this separately on the system or overtime forms available on the intranet. 
 
Overtime is not a given right and is to be worked following the request of the organisation or 
following agreement, due to busy periods, with appropriate Leads or Directors for that service area. 
 
16.0 END OF PERIOD RECONCILIATION – SETTLEMENT PERIOD 
 
There are 13 four weekly periods throughout the course of the year (settlement period). At the end 
of the settlement period, employees will be able to carry forward a maximum positive time balance 
of + 20.00 hours and a maximum negative time balance of –10.00 hours.   
 
Any employee with a balance of more than 20 hours accrued flexi will automatically default to the 
maximum permitted carry forward hours which is the 20 hours.   
 
At the end of the year any accrued hours above the balance of 20 hours cannot be carried forward.  
This also includes any banked flexi unless in exceptional circumstances to be agreed with the 
Director.  All banked flexi must be used by the end of the year. 
 
Employees leaving the employment of the Council should have a zero balance of hours on the 
system. Any untaken accrued flexi hours will not be payable. It is the responsibility of the employee 
to ensure that on departure their flexi has been utilised.   
 
Employees with a negative balance will have the appropriate monies deducted from their final 
salary. 
 
17.0 EMPLOYEES EXCLUDED FROM THE SCHEME 
 
The scheme will not apply to: 
 
 17.1 Employees employed on a seasonal basis. 

 
 17.2 Service areas whose customer needs are outside the parameters of the scheme.  

These service areas will be communicated to colleagues accordingly by their Lead. 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

pg. 5 
 

 
18.0 REVIEW 
 
Whilst this type of flexibility has significant benefits there are clear expectations surrounding the 
levels of productivity.  Flexibility drives increased productivity, however, where it is abundantly  
clear that productivity levels are reduced a review will be undertaken and, depending on the  
outcome, addressed accordingly. 
 
This policy will be reviewed automatically on a regular basis in the light of operating experience 
and/or changes in legislation. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

1.0 Introduction

These guidelines are for the electronic version of the Flexi time system used by all employees
that work in South Lakeland House.  The aim of the Flexi Time Scheme is to encourage a greater
work life balance whilst maintaining adequate cover in departments.  Mutual trust, confidence
and respect between employee, manager and employer are held to be essential for the flexi time
scheme to be of benefit to all.

Participation in the flexitime system is neither compulsory nor a right as employees may not wish
to participate in the system and it may not be practical in certain work areas. This is to be
determined by the Director or Manager but where employees are excluded from the scheme they
are entitled to have the reasons explained in writing.  However, all employees’ that work in South
Lakeland House whether on flexi or not will be required to carry an access card and clock in and
out with no exceptions.

The Flexi Time Scheme gives employees the ability to manage the distribution of hours that are
worked.  Flexibility is allowed within the guidelines throughout the working day to allow
employee’s to determine arrival and departure times to accommodate other commitments as
required.  However work should be completed as necessary, therefore managers may specify
reasonable restrictions as appropriate.

Expectations of Managers

The aim of the flexi scheme is to provide Managers with the flexibility to manage their services
and the working hours of their employees.  Managers are expected to balance service delivery
needs with the desires of employees to work flexibly and to be able to balance their work and
home commitments.

Where there is a demonstrable need for minimum staffing levels and where departments provide
a front line service to members of the public it is essential that adequate cover is maintained in
these departments and that work is completed as required, therefore Managers may specify
reasonable restrictions as appropriate.

Line managers must check periodically to ensure that the employees are using the system in line
with the Flexi Time Scheme Policy.

Expectations of Employees

Due to operational demands it may not be possible for all employee’s to work within the Flexi
Time Scheme and to understand that there may be times due to operational requirements,
workloads and office cover when it may not be possible to take flexi time.  Employees must
therefore always seek approval from their line manager when wishing to leave work out with their
regular working patterns and not clock in or out for other members of staff the flexi scheme is
based on trust and employees are expected to record their hours honestly and accurately each
day and must adhere to the Working Time Regulations.

Page 1 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & Procedures

Appendix 2

Page 19



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

2.0 Scope Of The Guidelines
These guidelines apply to all employees of South Lakeland District Council.   Abuse of the Flexi
Time Scheme including falsifying record sheets will be dealt with under the Council’s disciplinary
procedure and may also lead to the flexi time scheme being withdrawn from the employee.

3.0 Principles and Application of the Flexi Scheme 

3.1 Principles

• Working patterns: - Employees must be aware that the flexitime scheme is designed to
improve work/life balance and is not a mechanism of achieving additional days leave.
Managers will have the right to challenge working patterns if productive and meaningful
work is not being achieved.  Equally the demands of the service must be paramount in
deciding work patterns.

• Flexi Cards: - The Human Resources group will be responsible for card creation this will
include system set up for new starters and deletion/ removal of operations for leavers
from the system.  

• Technical Issues: - Problems and technical issues with the system should be directed to
the Information Technology group.

• Modifications: - to these instructions may be made from time to time to suit the
operation of the system, or agreed modification to the system.  All amendments will be
consulted on with the Trade Unions prior to implementation. 

• Flexi Time Adjustments: - Authorised requests for adjustments, time off or any absence
from the workplace will be accessed by the employee’s line manager via the Intranet link
set up on the system.

3.2 Application

• Flexi Leave: - There is no presumption that flexi-leave will be granted and once flexi-leave
has been agreed it will not usually be rescinded.  All applications have to be approved in
advance, however Managers will have the discretion to grant retrospective flexi-leave in
emergency situations. 

• Abuse of the system: - In the event of abuse of the system, a formal investigation will be
undertaken.  Disciplinary action may be taken against any officer who falsifies his/her
record or abuses the flexi scheme and deliberate or sustained abuse of the system will
be treated as a serious disciplinary offence, which may lead to dismissal.  Disciplinary
action will be in accordance with current procedures.  The Human Resources Group will
carry out audits of the system periodically.

• Security: - Employee’s who start early or work later during flexible times will be expected
to be especially careful about the security of buildings.  Any strangers should be
challenged for right to be in the building, and unusual occurrences should be reported to
the Section Head as soon as possible.    

• Breaks: - Employee’s leaving the building for smoking or other breaks, must clock out.

Page 2 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & ProceduresPage 20



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

4.0 Working Patterns

Start of Extreme Time 07.30
Start of Standard Day 08.45
Start of core time 10.00
Default time 09.00
Start of lunch 11.30

Default lunch break 1 hour
Minimum lunch break 30 minutes

End of lunch 14.30
End of core time 15.00
Default time 15.00
End of Standard Day 17.00
End of Extreme Time 19.30

Daily target hours 07.24

Settlement period – 4 weeks

5.0 Core Time

Core time is the period during which all employees are required to be at work.  Any booking in,
out or business absence (if applicable), during those times will be recorded.

Staff wishing to leave at the end of core time must seek approval from their line manager, as any
such request will need to address operational requirements, workloads and office cover.

6.0 Extreme Time

Extreme time is the hours within which the balance of the 37-hour week will be worked.

7.0 Part-Time Employees

Part-time employees will be eligible to join the flexi-time system, but it must be operated within
their normal working pattern.

8.0 Lunchtime

A minimum lunch break of 30 minutes must be taken between 11.30 and 14.30.  It is the
employee’s responsibility to ensure they take a 30 minute lunch in line with the Working Time
Regulations.

Page 3 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & ProceduresPage 21



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

If no break is recorded, one hour will be automatically deducted i.e. the default lunch break.  If
a break of less than 30 minutes is recorded, the system will automatically deduct 30 minutes.
Employees booked out on business absence for periods containing part of lunchtime 11.30 to
14.30 and with no other lunchtime bookings 30 minutes will be automatically deducted.

9.0 Business Absence

This facility is only allocated to certain employees and all business absence bookings recorded
on the system.

Start of Business Day 09.00

End of Business Day 16.30 

Booking Out

If an employee books ‘out’ on business and does not return back to the office, the system will
credit the employee to 16.30.  Any adjustments to this should be recorded via the Intranet link
to the flexi scheme.

Employees that book out on business absence and are not returning back to the office until the
following day should not attempt to book back in on business absence on their return, they
should book in normally or the system will consider them absent and credits a standard day.

Booking In

If an employee arrives late in the day because, for example, he/she has been on business
absence straight from home in the morning, a business absence arrival booking can be made.
This will give credit back to 9.00.  Any adjustments to this should be recorded via the Intranet
link to the flexi scheme.

Lunch

For periods containing part of lunchtime 11.30 to 14.30 30 minutes will be automatically
deducted.

10.0Absence for Medical/Dental/Opticians Appointments

Employee’s are encouraged to arrange all medical appointments outside core time, if an
appointment needs to be made within core time, permission should be sought from the
appropriate Line Manager.  Employees should always clock out for these appointments and they
will be taken in the employee’s own time.

In cases of appointments for eye tests under the Display Screen Equipment regulations,
employee’s should clock out but will be credited back with the appropriate hours by their line
manager.

Paid time off will be granted for the purpose of a one-off urgent medical appointment: e.g cancer
screening. Please see the Special Leave Policy for further details.

Page 4 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & ProceduresPage 22



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

11.0 Training and External Meetings

On days involving travel to and from training and external meetings employees will be able to
submit their actual hours including travel to the venue and returning to home or work which ever
is the shorter, between the start and end of extreme time flexi bands, a minimum half hour lunch
break must be recorded.

Where no travelling time is required the time involved in attending training courses or external
meetings between the start and end of extreme time flexi bands of 7.30 and 19.30 should be
calculated as working time and recorded on the flexi system accordingly.  Employees can only
submit up to a maximum of 7.24 hours for each day, a minimum half hour lunch break must be
recorded.

12.0 College/Study

12.1 Day Release

Time involved in attending educational establishments for the purpose of study including
examinations, between the start and end of extreme time flexi bands of 7.30 and 19.30 should
be calculated as working time and recorded on the flexi system accordingly.  Employees can only
submit up to a maximum of 7.24 hours including travel to the venue and returning to home or
work which ever is the shorter, a minimum half hour lunch break must be recorded.

12.2 Half Day Release

A morning or afternoon release of time to attend educational establishments for the purpose of
study including examinations, between the start and end of extreme time flexi bands of 7.30 and
14.00 (morning) and between 14.00 to 19.30 (afternoon) should be calculated as working time
and recorded on the flexi system accordingly.  Employees can only submit up to a maximum of
3.42 hours including travel to the venue and returning to home or work which ever is the shorter.
A minimum half hour lunch break must be recorded.

13.0 Working from Home

Employees working from home will record any adjustments. These times should be within the
start and end of extreme time flexi bands of 7.30 and 19.30.  A minimum half hour lunch break
must be recorded.

14.0 Forgotten Bookings

Lunchtime if no break is recorded, one hour will be automatically deducted.  Employees at the
end of the day failing to key out will be booked out at the default time of 15.00.

Employees must submit the appropriate adjustments to their line manager.  In the event of
abuse of these default times, a formal investigation will be undertaken and if abuse is proven
this may result in disciplinary action being taken.

Page 5 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & ProceduresPage 23



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

15.0 Taking Flexi

Employee’s will be allowed to take half a day or a full day in lieu of credits, to a maximum of 13
working days per leave year provided that this time off has been agreed in advance by your Line
Manager.  Only one day’s flexi leave per settlement period is allowed (pro rata to part time staff).

Employee’s will be allowed to accumulate up to 5 full working days to be taken later in the year,
by banking them on the system, this is in addition to the 13 days.  In these circumstances the
hours must have been accrued in advance.   

Holiday dates should be pre-booked into the system, if possible one week in advance.  If a period
of annual leave includes a flexi-day this must be identified when requesting flexi scheme
adjustments. 

The operation of flexible working hours will not, of itself, give rise to paid overtime working.
Employee’s who are entitled to overtime payments in accordance with National Joint Council,
National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of Service should record this separately on iTrent or
overtime forms available in the intranet.

16.0 End of Period Reconciliation

At the end of the flexi-time four weekly accounting period, employees will be allowed to carry
forward a maximum positive time balance of + 20.00 hours and a maximum negative time
balance of –10.00.  Any employee with excess credit will automatically default to the maximum
permitted carry forward hours.  Any employee who reaches the 10.00 hours deficit limit for more
than 2 consecutive periods will be interviewed by their Line Manager in order to determine the
reasons and provide assistance or guidance with a view to preventing the maximum being
reached on a regular basis.  The Human Resources Group will carry out audits of the system
periodically on this matter and will inform line managers as applicable.

Employees leaving the employ of SLDC should have a zero balance of hours on the system any
hours credit or debit are recorded on the leaver’s paperwork by the line manager.  Both the line
manager and employee are responsible to ensure a zero balance. Employees in debit will have
the appropriate monies deducted from their salaries.

17.0 Employees Excluded from the Scheme

The scheme will not apply to:

17.1 Employees that in the event of inappropriate use of the system may be excluded from the
benefits of the flexi scheme and will be expected to work within the standard day of 8.45 to
17.00.

17.2 Employees employed on a seasonal basis.

17.3 Manual workers required working at times, which are outside the parameters of the
scheme.

Page 6 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & ProceduresPage 24



Flexi Time Scheme Policy

PolicyFlexi Time Scheme Policy Revised June 2014

17.4 Any other officer who in the opinion of his Director or Manager, is required to adhere to
special opening hours, or such hours as may be agreed.  This category may include, information
assistants, museum employees, lake employees, and certain employee’s based at area offices
or depots.  Every effort will be made to ensure that as many employee’s as possible are able to
participate in the scheme.

18.0 Identity Cards

Lost/ misplaced cards must be reported to the Human Resources Group, who will cancel them
and then issue, a new card.  When leaving the employ of the Council, please ensure that you
hand in your card upon departure and that your flexi balance is zero.

19.0 Review

This policy will be reviewed on a regular basis in the light of operating experience and/or changes
in legislation.

Page 7 of 7 Human Resources Group • Policies & ProceduresPage 25



Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Item No.7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Human Resources Sub-Committee
	6 Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy
	Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy  - Appendix 1
	Working Arrangements and Flexi Policy  - Appendix 2

	7 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee

